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Descriptidn: Merchants' and Drovers! Tavein
EXTERIOR

This imposing frame building is 3 1/2 stories and five bays across
the front. It measures 41' by 28' with a rear 1 1/2 story kitchen wing
measuring 37' by 16'. The large section has a gambrel roof with four
dormers on the front. These dormers have side pilasters and half round
"Gothic'" upper sash. The first floor windows are 8/12, and the second

and third floor windows are 6/9 sash. A chimney stack rises up from
each gable end.

INTERIOR

A center hall with a front and rear entrance has an open stair
case in the rear. The bar room on one side of the hall has an exterior
front entrance and an entrance from the hall., On the other side of
the hall are double parlors (or dining room) each with a fireplace.

The chimney stack on the bar room side has been removed. On the second
floor is a large meeting room or ball room across the entire front.
There are two smaller rooms to the rear. On both the third and fourth
floors are five rooms. The kitchen wing has a cooking fireplace and
bake oven. A winder stair leads to the loft rooms above.

On the cellar there is a definite break in the foundation wall,
probably indicating an increase in width. The nonsymetrical front
facade might be the result of an increase in width of the building.
The original structure appears to have been only two stories,
probably third quarter 18th century. It was raised to 3 1/2 stories,
probably first quarter 19th century.

Description: Terrill Tavern (on Merchants' and Drovers' Tavern
site)

This structure has recently been meved to this site, having
also been moved earlier in the 20th century. This section is only
part of the original structure, possibly the kitchen wing. It
measures 18' by 24' and is 1 1/2 stories. The first floor is one
room with 6/9 sash. The large end wall fireplace has been rebuilt
as has the stair case. The three loft rooms have vertical board
walls and batten doors with HL hinges. The massive ceiling beams
are hewn oak as are the rafters. The construction indicates a later
18th century building.
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Description Addendum:

Terril Tavern was moved to the site in the early 20 th century, becmuse
of impending demolition. The sction that is located on the prorerty
is only part of the original struéture, possibly the kitchen wing,.

The remainder of the tavern was not sawed from demolition by moving

as this section was.,

Merchants! and Drovers! Tavern and Terrill Tavern are not connected,
but are located on the same property. Merchants! and Drovers!
Tavern has a one and one-half story kitchen wing, original, which
projects out the rear of the building.
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Historical Narrative

This old Tavern has played a significant part in the early History

of Rahway.

It has hosted many notables during the Revolutionary War,

including Washington, Lafayette, and Abraham Clark, and served as
a Stage House stop and change over spot for Horses on the Run to New
Brunswick.

It is an imposing landmark in its height and location on a very busy
intersection and provides an excellent opportunity of providing both
a museum and meeting place, very much before the Public's eyes. It
has played an important role in Rahway's History ever since its

building. '

The building has been measured and recorded in the Library of Congress
thru the H.A.B.S. survey and displays many fine Fireplaces, Stair and

original Kitchen wing.

When John Mercereau's '"Flying Machine'" made its bi-weekly trip from
Paulus Hook to Philadelphia, over the King's Highway, the Merchants"
and Drovers' Tavern was the first stop after leaving Elizabethtown

in the morning.

01d John would rein in his four horse hitch, near

the entrance, snap his whip proudly and jumping from his seat announce
to his passengers:

for refreshment.

A traveler would inquire the time allowed.

"Raw-Waw! Rah-Haw!
Highly commended."

Merchants'

and Drovers'. Place

"Ten minutes, sir. We

travel accordin' to schedule; must be in Brunswick by noon, on the
Enjoy the comforts of the tavern while you

dot.
may.

dot!"

Be at your ease.
The Flying Machine is always on the dot, sir, always on the

In those days (1772-1775) John Anderson was the keeper of the tavern.

He may also have been its builder.

It is located on the King's

Highway, where that ancient thoroughfare is crossed by the old post

road to the village of West Fields.

The property came into the-

possession of the Craig family through the marriage of Dr. Stuart
Craig to Phoebe, daughter of John Anderson.
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Historical Narrative cont'd

The tavern is located less than two blocks from where General William
Maxwell routed the British at the Battle of Spanktown after driving them
from Elizabethtown and Newark during the Revolutionary War.

George Washington stopped here in 1789 on his way to New York to be
inaugurated as the First President. A historic marker across the street

reads:

Here on April 23, 1789, on his way to New
York City, Washington was received by troops
from Elizabethtown and Newark. He was
entertained at the inn kept by Samuel Smith
by gentlemen of the town.

Significance Addendum:

Merchants! and Drovers! Tavern is the oldest still extant tavern
in Rahway. It is a representative example of crossroads community tavern
styles,

In the 18th and 19th centuries, the tavern was one of the most important
institutions in the country. They provided rest, food, and libation for
weary travelers passing through an area.

The tavern was the second most important building in the community.
Next to the church, the tavern provided a town or village with a central
focus in which businesses and people could conduct their affairs and
exchange ideas, being among the few structures open to the public. Merchants!
and Drovers' Tavern fulfilled this need for a place to gather for both
the townspeople and trawelers of Rahway. Particularly throughout the
Revolutionary War the tavern was widely used by people anxious to hear
news of the war, )

While an urban inn or tavern had a definite social hierarchy in which
certain classes were excluded, the crossroads inns were not able to
discriminate as freely and consequently entertained a more diversified
clientele with merchants, travelers and gentlemen often sharing the same
room, if not the smme hed., Merchants' and Drovers'! exemplifies this
philosophy both in its name and its practice.
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Significance Addendum:Cont'd:
Architecture

Merchants' and Drovers' Tavern is significant because it is the
oldest tavern still extant in Rahway and probably the only 18th century
structure in situ in the town. The tavern is also important for its
size. Built in the thitd quarter of the 18th century, it was originally

2 stories. Between 1790 and 1830 the building was enlarged to 3% stories

demonstrating the need for more space. This addition was well constructed

and was done so as to be compatible with the original construction.
Merchants' and Drovers' Tavern is a good surviving example of a

large corssroads tavern. It is possible the only extant 18th century

structure in the town and the only surviving example of a tavern in

Rahway, as such it merits inclusion in the National Register.
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Terrill Tavern

Terrill Tavern was moved to the sites in 1906 because of impending demolition,
The building today reflects only part of the original, possibly the

kitchen wing. The tavern was moved again in 1974, This was a reorientation
on the same pwoperty. The building does exhibit some late 18th century
charactersities, but has been altered and renovated seweral times, The
building as it stands is not architecturally significant.



